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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 2.23 (b) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses — Refer Note 2.35 to the financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2019.

(C) The Company has not paid / provided managerial remuneration to any directors during the financial
year ended 31 March 2019. Accordingly, the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under
Section 197(16) is not applicable to the Company.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 116231W/ W-100024

CeKLalsd |t Kegtin
Sulabh Kumar Kedia =
Partner

Membership No.: 066380

UDIN: 19066380AAAAAN1781

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 03 July 2019



B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

With reference to the Annexure-A referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private
Limited, (‘the Company’) on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
the fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, the
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets. In accordance with the aforesaid programme, management has verified
certain assets during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties. Therefore, the provisions of the
paragraph 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i)  The inventories have been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Therefore, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or
made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185
and 186 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there
under. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of medical
and healthcare services pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central Government of India for the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the records.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax,
Duty of Customs, Goods and Service tax and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay in few
cases. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Cess.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of customs, Goods and
Service tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.



B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Service tax,
Income tax, Duty of customs, Goods and Service tax and Value added tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. As explained to us, the
Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Excise and Sales tax.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any banks. The Company did not have any dues to
financial institutions or government nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) and
term loans during the year. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(ix) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not paid or provided any remuneration to managerial person during the year under
audit. Therefore, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(xii)
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

(xiv)

(xv)

of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Section 188
of the Act and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has constituted Audit committee as required under Section 177 of the Act vide its board
meeting dated 20 December 2018 and have ratified all related parties transactions held during the year
prior to its constitution.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(xiv)
of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the directors or
persons connected with him. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Sor BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sarlatt VM k_c..'bm/y
Sulabh Kumar Kedia

Partner

Membership No.: 066380

UDIN: 19066380AAAAAN1781

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 1(A) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of KIMS Hospital
Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Jor BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/ W-100024

Sulabh Kumar Kedia

Partner

Membership No: 066380

UDIN: 19066380AAAAAN1781

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019



KIMS Hospital Enterpriscs Private Limited
Balance sheet
INR in millions

Note As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1(a) 617,18 623.04
Intangiblc asscts 2 1(b) 4.45 =
Financial assets
(i) Loans 2.2(a) 12.50 11.43
(i1) Other financial asscts 2.3(a) 117 1.01
Deferred tax assets 233 - 2491
Non-cunent tax assets (net) 69.81 55.86
Other non-current asscts 2.4 2433 2257
Total non-current assets 729.44 738.82
Current assets
Inventories 25 30.57 2617
Financial assets
(i) Trade reccivables 2.6 59.61 73.85
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.7(a) 573 9.44
(iii) Bank balances olher than (ii) above 2.7(b) 0.10 -
(iv) Loans 2.2(b) 0.09 =
(v) Other financial assets 2.3(b) 7.37 4.67
Other current assets 2.8 9.02 9.76
Total current asscts 112.49 123.89
Total assets 841.93 862.71
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 29 24545 24545
Other equity 120.85 64.94
Total equity 366.30 310.38
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Bomrowings 210 296.15 338.16
Provisions 211 5.67 3.07
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 233 14.06 -
Total non-current liabilities 315.88 341.23
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 212 12,52 3943
(ii) Tradc payablcs
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro cnterprises and small cnterpriscs 2.13 1.36 0.73
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 213 89.87 112.91
and small enterpriscs
(iii) Other financial liabilitics 2.14 43.23 4568
Provisions 2,15 3.06 3.48
Other cuirent liabilities 2.16 9.71 8.86
Total current liabilities 159.75 211.09
Total liabilities 841.93 862.71
Significant accounting policics 1.3
Notes to the financial statciments 2
The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of the financial statements
As per our Report on financial statements of cven datc attached
for B S R & Associates LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 11623 1W/W-100024 CIN:UB5191TG2013PTC085793

Cahlatbh K Keolla
/ Dr. G. L. Panir;

Sulabh Kumar Kedia Br. CH. Harini

Partner Director Director
Membership no.: 066380 DIN: 06779203 DIN: 00356392
UDIN: 19066380AAAAANI781

I H i ‘ —

Uma Shankar Mantha 1

Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019 Date: 03 July 2019



KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss

INR in millions

123.86

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 2.17 1,177.32 892,38
Other income 2.18 7.39 2,75
Total revenue 1,184.71 895.13
Expenses
Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed 2.19 235.33 187.33
Employee benefits expense 2.20 160.43 142.34
Finance costs 221 42,19 51.31
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.1 63.74 58.21
Other expenses 222 559.16 458.18
Total expenses 1,060.85 897.37
Profit / (loss) before tax 123.86 (2.24)
Tax expense
- Current tax 233 29.17 -
- Deferred tax charge / (benefit) 233 38.90 (43.78)
Total tax expense 68.07 (43.78)
Profit for the year (A) 55.79 41.54
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.19 0.73
- Income tax effect (0.07) (0.23)
Other comprchensive income, net of tax (B) 0.12 0.50
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 55.91 42.04
Earning per share (face value of share INR 10 each) 2.28
- Basic 2.27 1.70
- Diluted 2.27 1.70
Significant accounting policies 1.3
Notes to the financial statements 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report on financial statements of even date attached

for B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no.: 116231W/ W-100024

Sulabh Kumar Kedia

Partner

Membership no.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAANI781

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
CIN:U85191TG2013PTC085793

Mira
Director
DIN: ()67 79

Uma Shankar Mantha
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019

N A

(hor

Dr. CH. Harini
Director
DIN: 00356392



KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Statement of caxh lows

I. Cash flows [rom operating activities:

INR in millions

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

A}
S Koot ko« Keeolinm
<
Sulabh Kumar Kedia
Pariner

Membership no.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAANL 78I

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019

Dr. G. L. Paniraj
Director
DIN: 06779203

Uma Shankar Mantha

Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019

Irofit / (loss) before tax 123.86 (2.24)
Adjustments for operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation 63.74 58.21
Provision for impairment on reccivables 1153 {0.99)
Trade teceivable written off 628 .
Commission expenses on puarantee taken from related pary 200 171
Lease income (1.58) (108)
Interest income on fixed deposits (0.08) (0.03)
Inlerest on income-lax retund - (0.44)
Finance cost 4219 49.60
Opcrating cash fows hefore working capital changes 247.94 104.73
Adjustinens for;

Increase in trade receivables (3.57) (12 45)
Incteasce in inventorics (4.40) (2.67)
(Tncrease)/Decrease in loans and other asscts (3.58) 7.90
Decrease in liabilities and provisions (17.18) (3.26)
Cash gencrated from operations 219.21 94.25
Income-taxes paid, net of 1cfund (43.12) (28.00)
Net cash provided by operating activities (A) 176.09 66.25
[I. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (68.92) (80.77)
Bank deposils thaving original maturity of more (han three months) (0.26) (Lol
Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than threc months) 117
Lease income received 1.58 1.08
Inlerest received 0.01 0.04
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (67.59) (79.49)
III. Cash Nows from financing activities*

Repayment of long-term borrowings (43.05) (353.90}
Proceeds from long-term borrowings . 379.02
Net repayment of short-lerm borrowings (26.91) (21.53)
Repayment of finunce lease obligations (099 (0.68)
Proceeds from issue of shares - 12.50
Finance cost paid (41.26) (45.41)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (112.21) (30.00)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3.71) (43.24)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 944 52.69
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year [refer nate 2.7 (a)] 5.73 9.44
Note:

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 034 0386
Balances with banks

- On current accounls 539 8.58
Total 5.73 9.44
*Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars As at Cash flow Non cash changes As at

01 April 2018 _changes | - transactlon cost 31 March 2019

Long-term borrowings 361.32 (44.04) (0.88) 318.16
|Shorl-term borrowings 39.43 (26.90) - 12.52
The notes refened to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of cven datce attached

for BS R & Assuciates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: [16231'W/ W-100024 CIN:UR5191TG2013PTCOB5793

. i

Dr. CH. Harini
Direcior
DIN: 00356392




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Statement of chunges in equity

IR in millions

Particulars Fquity share capital Other equity Total of Other equity

Share li Reserve and surplus

money pending Securities premium | Retained earnings | Capital contribution
allotment account

Balance as at | April 2018 24545 1.4 {61.64) 1517 64.94
Prolit [or the year - - 5579 - 55.79
Re-measutcment of defined benelit liability (nct of tax) - - - 0.12 . 012
Ralance as at 31 March 2019 24545 - 11141 15.73) 15.17 120.85
INR in millions
Particulars Equity share capiial Other equity Total of Other equity

Share application Reserve and surplus

money pending Securities premivm

Retained earnings

Capital contribution

allotment account
Balance as at | April 2017 229.60 50.89 63.87 (103.68) 1035 2143
Laoss for the year - - 4154 - 41.54
Guarantce commission . - . 482 4.82
Issue of sharcs 15.85 {50.89) 47.54 - - 3.35)
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability (nct of tax) - - 0.50 - 0.50
Balance as at 31 March 2018 245.45 - 11141 {61.64) 15.17 64.94

Securities premium account: Securilies premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares, [tis utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Capital contribulion: Financiul guarantee are d as a i
determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount i

‘Where guarantee in relation (o loans or other payables of subsidiary is provided for no

The accompanying notes form an intcgral part of the financial stateents,
As per our Report on financial stalements of even dale attached

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no : 11623 W/ W-100024

%
Sulabh Kumar Kediz
Partner

Membership no.: 066380
UDIN: 19066380AAAAANT781

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019

hold.

by the sh:

Sor and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
CIN:UB5191TG2013PTC085793

.

Dr.G.L.
Director
DIN: 06779203

Uma Shankar mantha
Company Secrctury

Place: Ilyderabad
Date: 03 July 2019

Dr. CH. Hurini
Director
DIN: 00356392

ial liabilily al time the guarantee is issued The liability is measured at faii value and subsequenily ut the higher ol the amount
ly recognised less cumnulalive amortisation, where appropriate,
, fair values are accounted for as contribution in the books of the Company.



KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements

1.1 Company Overview

KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 15 February 2013 as
a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is primarily engaged in
business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The Company is a subsidiary of Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited with effect from
30 March 2018.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements
a) Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016
notified under section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As at 31 March 2019, the current liabilities of the Company exceeded its current assets by INR 47.26
million. The Company has however earned a cash profit (Earnings before depreciation, after tax) of
INR 158.43 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. Management is also confident that based on its
past records of maintaining short term borrowing and its ability to honour the payment of interest and
repayment of principal, it will be able to maintain the short term borrowings at the current levels and
also of support from Shareholders. Accordingly, Management considers it appropriate to prepare their
accounts on a going concern basis.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 03 July
2019.

b) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Effective 1 April 2018, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (hereafter “Ind AS 115”)
introduced a 5-step approach to revenue recognition, which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaced Ind AS 18 “Revenue”, Ind
AS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related interpretations.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initially
applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April 2018). The standard is
applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at the date of initial application and
the comparative information in the profit or loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information
continues to be reported under Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11.

Management reviewed and assessed the Company’s existing policy for recognising the revenue at 1
April 2018 and concluded that, apart from more extensive disclosures for the Company’s revenue
transactions, the initial application of Ind AS 115 has had no significant impact on the Company’s
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 and its statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended. Consequently, there were no adjustments as at 1 April
2018.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except
share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Fair value of plan assets less present value of
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability defined benefit obligations

e) Use of estimates and judgements:

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

f) Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 2.25 — leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease and

Note 2.25 — lease classification

g) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2019 is included in the following notes:

* Note 2.33 — Recognition of deferred taxes, availability of future taxable profit against which
tax losses carried forward can be used
* Note 2.26 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions
* Note 2.23(b) - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.
e Note 2.32 (B) (ii) - Impairment test of financial assets

h) Current-non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption-in, the Company’s

normal operating cycle; A=l A

1. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 1




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

h) Current-non-current classification
iil. it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
lv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
1. itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii. itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
ii1. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
iv. the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months that is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

i) Measurement of fair values:

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions

made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

Note 2.32 — financial instruments




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1.3 Significant accounting policies
a) Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial asset

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

= Amortised cost;
- FVTPL

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financjal assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
Financial assets at FVTPL gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in profit and loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on Derecognition is
recognised in profitand loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

a) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

ilii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit and
loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b) Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or
net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of these inventories comprises of all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition,

The Company follows the weighted average method for determining the cost of such inventories.

The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by item basis./ﬁ,ni‘e“;‘;%
&

———

(7




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

¢) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

d) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated.

e) Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital
services and sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless
significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered, to
the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of
services rendered. In determining the transaction price for the hospital services, the Company
considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components,
noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any). Income is recognised net of
discounts and concessions given to the patients.

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the
balance sheet date.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and sale of food and beverages is recognised when it transfers control
over a good or service to the customer, generally on delivery and no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding
its collection.

Income from interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing securities is recognised on the time
proportionate method.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which include capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

If significant parts of item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit and
loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Company provides depreciation under straight-line method on Property, Plant and Equipment,
other than assets costing less than INR 5,000 based on the useful life specified in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013, as in the opinion of the Management, the same reflects the estimated useful life.
Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date on which the assets are ready for use or till
the date the assets are sold or disposed off.

Leasehold land is in the nature of perpetual lease without any limited useful life and hence is not
amortised. Assets costing less than INR 5,000 based on internal assessment and materiality the
Management has estimated that the same shall be depreciated in the year of purchase.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted appropriately.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are derecognised from the financial statements upon
sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of
each reporting date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not
ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

h) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g, under short term
cash bonus, if the group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
the past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government
administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contributions are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have eamed and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount
rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined benefit liability (asset)
as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains
and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement
occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement
of profit and loss.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit and the accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this
entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method.

i) Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At the inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.

At inception or on the reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for the
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an
amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made
and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate.

Finance leases

Lease of Property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. The leased asset are measured initially at an
amount equal to lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to similar owned assets.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and

the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases

Asset held under lease that do not transfer to the Company and associate substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership ( i.e. operating lease ) are not recognised in the balance sheet.

Lease payments under operating lease are generally recognised as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight line basis over the term of lease unless such payments are structured to increase
in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

j) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders
for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for
the year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net
profit per share.

k) Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit
and loss except to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantially enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the assets and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1) Foreign exchange transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at prevailing rate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

m) Impairment
a. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost;

At cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

— the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

— itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except
for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

— Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of
the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and

-y
J.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward: " looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the trade receivable does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due. '

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

n) Provisions and contingent liabilities
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present
obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are
recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of
such obligation.

o) Recent accounting pronouncements:
Standards issued but not effective on Balance sheet date:

The Company is required to adopt Ind AS 116, Leases from 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 introduces a
single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value
items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard — i.e. lessors continue to classify
leases as finance or operating leases. It replaces existing leases guidance, Ind AS 17, Leases.

The Company has initiated detail study to ascertain the impact, if any, on its financial statements due
to adoption Ind AS 116 and the same is not reasonably estimable at present.
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KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.2

(@)

(b)

2.3

(a)

(b)

24

Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

Non-current
Security deposits

Total

Current
Security dcposits

Total

Other financial assets
(unsecured, considered good)

Non-current
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months of reporting date)*
Interest accrued

Total

* The above deposits are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.

Current
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue)
Interest accrued

Total

Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid guarantee commission

Total

INR in millions

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

12.50 11.43
12.50 11.43
0.09 s
0.09 -
1.10 1.01
0.07 .
1.17 1.01
7.36 4.67
0.01 =
7.37 4.67
3.77 0.55
13.14 12.60
7.42 9.42
24.33 22.57




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2)

b)

2.8

INR in millions

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Inventories*
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable valuc)

Medical consumables and pharmacy items 30.57 26.17
Total 30.57 26.17
*Refer note 2.34 for assets pledged as security.
Trade receivables*
Considered good - Secured - =
Considered good - Unsecurcd 71.86 74.58
Total receivables 71.86 74.58
Less : Provision for impairment (12.25) 0.72)
Net trade receivables 59.61 73.85
*Refer note 2.34 for assets pledged as security.
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 2.32 (B).
Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.34 0.86
Balances with banks

- On current accounts 5.39 8.58

5.73 9.44
Other bank balances* 0.10
0.10 -

Total 5.83 9.44

* The above deposits arc restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing within 12 months of the

reporting date.

Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Staff advances 2.19 2.32
Advance to suppliers 1.08 1.43
Prepaid expenses 3.75 4.01
Prepaid guarantee commission 2.00 2.00
Total 9.02 9.76




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limifed
Notes to the financial siatements (continued)

PR

a}

hy

d)

Equity share capital

Authorised
Equity sharcs

25,000,000 (31 March 2018: 25.000.000) cquity sharcs of INR 10 cach

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

24,544,657 (31 Maich 2018: 24,544,657) cquity sharcs of TNR 10 cach fully paid-up

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end af the year:

INR in milliyns
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
250.00 250.00
250.00 250.00
24545 24545
245.45 245.45
22

INR in millions

P'articulars

As at 31 March 2019

As a( 31 March 2018

Number of shares Aniount Numiber of shares Amiunt
At the commencement of the year 24,544,657 24545 22,959,976 22960
Shares issued during the year . - 1,584,681 1585
Shures tsxied be bomis shares . 2 v -
Shares ding at the end of the year 24,544,657 24545 24,544,657 245.45

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to cquity shares:

The Company ha:

single class of cquity shares. Accordingly, all cquity shares rank equally with regard o dividends and sharc in the Compuny's residual assets. The equity shures arc entilled 10 receive dividend as

declared from Lime Lo Lime. The voting rights of an equity sharcholder on a poll (not on show of hands) arc in proportion 1o its share of the paid-up cquity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Coinpany. the
halders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive the tesidual assets of the Company, 1emaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of cquity shares held

Particulars of sharcholders holding more than 5% cquity shares

Name of sharchalder

As at 31 March 2019

As al 31 Murch 2018

Kolla Seshaiah
S. Sunand

5 Padma Priya

Nambier of shares Yo of Hulding Number of shares % of Holding
Kiishna Institule o Medical Scicnces Limited 12,338,155 50.27 12,338,155 5027
1019 2,500,000 1019
8.69 2,132,949 869
147 2,962 500 12.07
Shares betd by holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or associate af holding o
Name of sharcholder As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number of shares At Number of shares Amaunt
Krishina Indtnute of Medical Sciences Linitod* 12.336.158 123 2138155 12118

*With effcet from 30 March 2018, the Company became a subsidiary of Krishna Institute of Mcdical Sciences Limited

Apnre
Particulars

te numbier af bunus shares isued, shares Isswed for consideration ather than cash durin,

the period of 5 years immediutely preceding the reporging date
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Trsue of equity shares of INR 10 cach, fully paid up to Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences
Limited by conversion of unsceured loan into equity.

- 937,500

There has been no issuance of shares vther than cash and no buy back of sharc for a period of five years immedialely preceding the balance sheel date




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.10

Notes:

Borrowings INR in millions
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Non-current Current* Non- current Current*

Secured

Term loans from banks

- Ycs bank (refer note 1) 291.32 19.81 331.13 21.60

- HDFC bank (refer note ii) 3.70 0.62 432 0.57

Total loans from banks (A) 295,02 20.43 335.45 22,17

Unsecured

Finance Icase obligations (1cfer note iii) 1.13 1.58 2.71 0.99

Total unsecured loans (B) 1.13 1.58 2.71 0.99

Total (A+B) 296.15 22.01 338.16 23.16

*Refer current maturities of long term debts under note 2.14 Other financial liabilities

Yes Bank term loan of INR 360 millions is secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable fixed asscts including Ieaschold improvements, present and future, by way
deed of hypothecation and first exclusive charge on all current assets of the Company (Refer note 2.34). Further, the loan is secured by unconditional and irrevocable
personal guarantces of Dr, B, Abhinay, Mrs, CH. Harini and Mr. §. Sunand (Directors of thc Company) and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao (promoter of Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited). The amount is repayable in 72 monthly instalments starting from January 2018 to December 2023. The loan carries an interest rale of [Y MCLR +
1.15% (sprcad) per annum. The loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Mcdical Sciences Limited, Further, the loan is sccured by a charge
on the cscrow account. Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 311.13 millions (31 March 2018: INR 352.73 millions).

Term loan from HDFC Bank of INR 5.03 millions is sccured by first exclusive hypothccation charge on the vehicle acquired from the said loans. The loan carrics intercst
rate of 8.01% per annum. These loans are repayable in 84 equated monthly instalments slarting from January 2018 Lo December 2024, Outstanding amount as on 31 March
2019 is INR 4.32 millions (31 March 2018: INR 4.89 millions).

Finance lease obligations pertain to medical equipment taken on finance lease. The lease term of such medical equipment is 6 years with equated monthly payments, The
same carries an interest rate ranging from 36.31% to 43.51% per annum (31 March 2018: 36.31% to 43.51% per annumy). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR
2.71 million (31 March 2018: INR 3.70 million)




KIMS llospltal Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements (continued)

2.10 Long-term borrowings (continued)

Finance lcase obligations are payable as follows:

INR in millions

Future mInlmuni lease

31 March 2019
Interest element of MLP

Present value of minimum

INR in milllons

31 March 2018

Interest element of MLP Present value of minimum

Future minlowimg lease
Tease payments

payments (MLP)

payments (MLP) lease payments
Within less than onc year 268 110 1.58 249 1.50 099
Between one and Mve years 1.88 075 113 456 1.85 271
After more than five years - -
Total 4.56 1.85 2,71 7.08 35 .70

Certain items of medical cquipment have been obtained on finance iease basis. The legal title Lo these items vests with their tessor. The lease term of such medical cquipment is 6 years with equated monthly payments

i
buginning from the month subscquent to the commencement of lease. The legal title of medical equipment will be transferred 1o the Cumpany a the end of the lease term of the respective agreements at nominal values The

said lease arrangement does not contain any contingent rent

vi.

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 2.32

Aggregate amount of secured loans (including currenl maturitics of long-term borrowings) guaranteed by dircctors and others : INR 311,13 millions (31 March 2018 : INR 352,73 millions)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.11

212

2.13

2.14

2.15

INR in millions

As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Long-tcrm provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note. 2.26) 2.86 1.94
Compensated abscnces 2.81 1.13
Total 5.67 3.07
Short-term borrowings
Secured
Working capital loans from banks [refer note i] 12.52 39.43
Total 12.52 3943

Notes

Working capital loans consists of loans from:

a) Working capital loan represents loan from Yes Bank of INR 40.00 millions secured by first exclusive charge on entire movable fixed asscts including leaschold
improvements, present and future, by way deed of hypothecation and first exclusive charge on all current assets of the Company. Further, the loan is secured by
unconditional and irrevocuable personal guarantees of Dr. B. Abhinay, Mrs. CH. Harini and Mr. S. Sunand and Dr. B. Bhaskara Rao. The loan is also secured by corporate
guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited aggregating to INR 400 millions. Further, the loan is secured by a charge on the escrow account. The loan
canies an interest rate of quarterly MCLR + 2% (spread). Outstanding amount as on 31 March 2019 is INR 12.52 millions (31 March 2018: INR 39.43 millions ).

Aggregate amount of secured loans guaranteed by directors and others is INR 12,52 millions (31 March 201 8: INR 39.43 millions).
Information aboul the Company's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 2.32.

Trade payables

Tradc payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 2.30) 1.36 0.73
- total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 89.87 112.91
Total 91.23 113.64

The above includes payable to related parties. For details refer note 2.27.

All tradc payables are ‘cucrent’. The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payable is included in note 2.32

Other financial liabilities*

Current

Current maturities of long term debts (refer note 2.10) 22.01 23.16
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.01 2.96
Employee benefits payable 14.36 11.63
Capital creditors 242 577
Other deposits 1.43 2.16
Total 43.23 45.68

The Company’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 2.32.

Short term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 2.26) & 0.04
Compensated absences 3.06 3.44
Total 3.06 3.48

Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable 7.17 6.09
Contract liabilities* 2.54 2.77
Total 9.71 8.86

* Represents advances received from patients.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
INR in millions
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
2.17 Revenue from operations
A Income from medical and healthcare services
Income from hospital services 885.05 680.21
Income from pharmacy 283.81 199.15
Total (A) 1,168.86 879.36
B Other operating income
Income from sale of food and beverages 2.51 1.44
Other hospital income 5.95 11.58
Total (B) 8.46 13.02
Total revenue from operations (A+B) 1,177.32 892.38

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Contract price 1,208.84
Adjsutments for:

Discounts and disallowances (41.09)
Others 1.11
Income from medical and healthcare services 1,168.86

2.18 Other income
Interest income on:

- fixed deposits 0.08 0.03
- security deposit 1.01 0.88
- Others 0.16 0.44
Sub-lease income (refer note 2.25) 1.58 1.08
Sponsorship income 1.96 -

Liabilities no longer required written back 0.73 -

Miscellaneous income 1.87 0.32

Total 7.39 2.75




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.19 Medical consumables and pharmacy items consumed

2.20

2.21

2.22

Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Closing stock

Total
Employee benefits expense*

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.26)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

*Net of amount capitalised (refer note 2.24)

Finance costs

Interest expense on

- term loans

- other loans

- finance lease obligation
Guarantee commission expense
Other borrowing costs

Total

Other expenses*

Consultancy charges
Hospital maintenance
Power and fuel
Catering and patient welfare
Rent (refer note.2.25)
Tests and investigations
Repairs and maintenance:
- Medical /Non medical equipment
- Hospital building and others
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Ratcs and taxcs
Insurance

Provision for impairment on receivables

Trade receivables written off
Travelling and conveyance
Advertisement and publicity
Communication

Bank charges

Miscellaneous

Total

* Net of amount capitalised (refer note 2.24)

Note:

Payment to auditors [excluding applicable tax]

INR in millions

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

26.17 23.50
239.73 190.00
30.57 26.17
235.33 187.33
146.50 129.11
11.08 11.06
2.85 2.17
160.43 142.34
36.01 39.26
1.80 4.39
1.51 1.79
2.00 1.71
0.87 4.16
42.19 51.31
296.19 231.91
48.93 44.67
26.00 22.32
18.94 19.30
69.80 69.71
5.56 3.83
18.45 16.35
13.12 7.08
6.84 7.16
9.96 5.87
2.10 3.57
0.79 0.12
11.53 (0.99)
6.28 -
1.80 0.70
12.09 17.06
3.10 2.51
4.92 6.54
2.76 0.46
559.16 458.18

INR in millions

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended|
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Statutory audit fee 0. SQ/; 7 0.50
Out of pucket.gxpenses [),(;‘Ff \.t‘ -8, 0.03
‘aoc.';ai(:"s ¢ 40 ‘,{/ :" &
F J '.'rf—‘;
b -'Ur‘ 1
!
-._../ '\
5. 9

_"'_'Z.-
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Contingent liabilities and coimnitinents

(#) Commitments INR in millions
Parteutars As at As al
31 March 2014 31 March 2018

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be cxecuted on capital account and not provided 052 0.08

for {net of advances)

(b} Contingent liabiliry INR in millions
Farticulars Asat As dt
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cluims against the company not acknewledged as debfs in respect of:

1) Medical claims (gross, excluding interest/costs) 570 570

() The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“SC™) by their order dated 28 Febyuary, 2019, in the casc of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s Employce Provident Fund Organisation
(EPFO), sct out the principles based on which allowances paid (o the employces should be identificd for inclusion in basic wages for the purposcs of compulation of Provident
Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal. Pending decision on the subject review petition
and directions fiom the EPFO, the Munagement based on a legal opinion has a view that the applicability of the decision is prospective and accordingly provided the liability fov
Match 2019. The impact for the past period, will depend upon the outcame of subject review petition and dircetions from the EPFO and henee disclosed as a Contingent liability in
the financial statements. The impact of the same is nol ascerlainable,

Notes:
i. Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company and its associate to estimate the timings of the cash flow, if any, in respect of the above as
it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities,

ii. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adcquately provided for where provisions arc required and disclosed as contingent liabilitics
where applicable in its financial statements, The Company docs not expecl the outcome of these procceding (o have a materially adverse effect on its financial position

Incidental expenditure during the construction period
During the year, the Company has capitalised the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of property, plant and equipment, as they are directly attribulable expenses
Conscquently amounts disclosed under the respective notes as mentioned below are net of amounts capitalised by the Company,

INR In milllons

N Asat As at

Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Other expenses (refer note 2.22)
Travelling and other expenses . 0.01
Consullancy technical fec - 0.68
Total (A) - 0.69
Employee benefit expenses (B) (refer note 2.20) - 1.73
Grand ftotal (A+B) - 2.42

Lease

Operating leuse in the capacity of lessee

The Company has taken offices and residential premises under cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements, The Company inlends o renew such lease in the
normal course of its busincss. Total rental expenses under non-cancellable operating leascs amounts to INR 65.32 millions (31 March 2018; INR 64.67 millions) and cancellablc
amounts to INR 4.48 millions (31 March 2018: INR 5.04 millions} . The same are grouped under other expenses in the statement of profit and loss

The total of minimum lease payment (MLP) under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

INR in millions

Particulars Total MLP outstanding Total MLP outstanding
as at 31 March 2019 as at 31 March 2018
Due within one year 3595 53.44
Duc later than onc year and not laler than one live years 60.01 95.96
Duc afler five years - -
Total 95.96 149.40

A part of the lcased property has been sublet by the Company. The lease expires in May 2073 and the sublease expites in March 2023, An amount of INR 1,58 millions is
recognised under 'Other income' in respect of sublease (31 March 2018: INR 1.08 millions)

Finance lease in the capucity of lessee
Medical equipment includes the following amounts where the Company is a lessec under finance lease:
INR in millions

|Particulars o Asalt

31 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018
Cost 3.68 3.68
Accumulated depreciation (2.32) (152)
Nel carrying amount 1.36 2.16

The leasc term in respect of assets acquired under finance leascs generally expires within 6 years, Under the term of fcases, the Company has the it toucqbire the Ieased assets
al norminal value al the expiry ol the Icascs
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2.26 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operate post-emiployment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered al least five years of
continuous serviees, o reccive onc-hall month's salary for cach year of completed services at the time ol retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by trust formed
for this purpose and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's obligation in respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan is provided for
based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the
payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date and accordingly the maximum payment is restricted to INR 2 million per employee

A Bascd on the actuarlal valuation obtained in this respect, the following table scts out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the

Company's fi ial as at the balance sheet date:
INR in millions
q As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Defined benefit obligation 4.90 343
Fair valuce of plan assets 2,03 1.45
Net defined benefit obligation 2.87 1.98
Total employee benefit liabilicy 2.87 1.98
Non-current (Refer note 2.11) 2.87 1.94
Current (refer note 2.15) - 0,04
B Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation
The lollowing table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances (o the closing balances for net defincd benefit obligation and its components.
i) _Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligati INKE in millinns
As at As al
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 Murch 2018
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 343 2.56
Current service cosl 1.38 1.43
Interest cost 0.26 0.19
Actuarial (gains) / losscs recogniscd in other comprehensive incame
- Changes in demographic assumptions (1.20) -
- Changes in financial assumplions 1.06 {0.75)
Bencfit paid (0.03) -
Defined benefit obligution as at 31 March 4.90 3.43
i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan asseis INR in millions
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Plan assets as at 1 April 1.45 1.50
Contributions paid into the plan 0.68 -
Administration expenses (0.25) -
Retum on plan assets 0.14 011
Retum on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income (actuarial gain/loss) 0.05 (0.02)
Bencfit paid (0.03) 0.14)
Plan assets as at 31 March 2.04 1.45
C i) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
INR in millions
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cunent service cost 1.38 1.43
Intcrest cost 0.13 0.08
Administration expenses 0.25 -
Net gratuity cost, included in 'employee benefits' 1.76 151
C ) Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income INR in millions
) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
3t March 2019 31 March 2018
Acluarial gain on dcfincd benefit obligation (0.19) (0 73]'
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D Plan assets
Plan asscts comptises of the following:

INR in milliuns

Particulars — Asll
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Fund managed by lasurer 2,04 1.45
E Defined benefit obligation
i} Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial I i at the g date (expressed as weighted pes):
Principal actuarial assumptions As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Mureh 2018
Discount ralc 7.50% 777%
Sulary escalation rate 8.00% 6.00%

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

INR in millions

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1st following year
Year2to5
YearGto9
Year 10 and above

1.53

335 -
1.03 -
0.44 343

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian govermment securities as al the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of fulure salary increases considered lakes into accounts the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factars.

ii) Scnsitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes al the reporting date Lo onc of the relevant actuarial assumptions would have affected the defined benefit abligation by the amounts shown

below:
INR in millions
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2019 For the year ended 31 March 2018
Increuse Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rale (1% movement) (0.16) 0.15 (0.35) 0.42
Salary escalation rate (1% movement) .15 (0.16) 0.80 (0.64)
F Defined contribution plan INR in millions

Tarticulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

A T ised in the
i) Provident fund
i) Employee stale insurance

of profit iand lass towards

6.26 645
3.07 3.10




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Noutes to the fi ial stal ts (continued)

2.27 Related party disclosures
(a) Parties where control exists or where significant i

e exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the current year or previous vear

Nature of relationship

Name of related parties

Key management personnel (KMP)

Dr. Bollineni Abhinay
Mr, S, Sunand
Dr. G.L Pani Raj

Holding Company

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited

Relative of KMP

Dr. Raavi Swetha
Mrs_ S. Padma Priya

Enterprises under control or joint control of KMP and other relative

SSC Projects Private Limited

(b) Transactions with related parties *

INR in nillions

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the period ended
31 March 2018

i Dr. Bollineni Abhinay
Consultancy charpges

ii.  Dr.G. L Pani Raj
Consultancy charges

fil.  Dr. Raavi Swetha
Consultancy charges

iv.  Mr. S, Sunand
Rent paid

v.  Mrs. 8. Padma Priya
Rent paid

vi,  Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
bles and pharmacy

F of medical ¢
Interest on loan given
Re-imbursement of claims
Sale of pharmacy items
Advance reccived

Corporale guaranice reccived
Comporate pnarantee closed
Interest given to related partics

Purchasc of medical cquipment (excluding taxcs)

Guarantee comumission

vil, SSC Projects Private Limited
Purchase of goods and services

4.80
231
13,46
13.46

995

9.00
095

200

1.89

0.90

428

230

13.08

13.18

11.16
0.27
2036
1.76
6,00
400,00
310.00
0.71
16.17
171

0.43

* During the yeur, the Company has constituted Audit commitiee as requited under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 vide its board meeling daled 20 December 2018 and have ratified all
related party transactions held during the year prior to its constitution. Management believes that the delay in constitution of Audit committee will not have any significant impact on these financial

statement as all the transaction were ratified by the said committee

(¢) The balances received from and payable to related parties

INR in millions

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

Asat

31 March 2018

i Trade payables

Dr. Bollineni Abhinay - 0.14

Dr. G. L Pani Raj 0.36 032

Dr. Raavi Swetha - 023

Mr. 8. Sunand 223 223

Mrs, S. Padma Piiya 223 223

SSC Projects Private Limited 045 032
ii.  Corporate guarantee received

Krishna Institute of Medical Scicnees Limiled 400.00 400.00
iii.  Prepaid guarantee commission

Krishna Institute of Mcdical Scicnces Limited 942 1142 ,

(d)  For certain loan availed by the Company, Directors of the Company have given personal guarantee. Refer note 2,10 and 2.12 for details on the same

Terms and conditions:

All transactions with these related patties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulling oulstanding reccivables and payables including financial assets and financial liabilities balances are setiled

in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the transaction date. None of the balances are secured,




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.28 Earnings per sharc(EPS) INR in millions

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Earnings
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 55.79 41.54
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the ycar 24,544,657 22,959,976
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - 1,584,681
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 24,544,657 24,544,657
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 24,544,657 24,370,993
Weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year -Basic-after considcring 24,544,657 24,370,993
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year -diluted 24,544,657 24,370,993
Earnings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10-Basic (INR) 227 1.70
Earnings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10-Diluted (INR) 2,27 1.70

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares and therefore basic and diluted EPS are the same.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.29 Segment information

230

The Company is cngaged in the business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

Ind AS 108 “Opcrating Segment” (“Ind AS 108™) cstablishes standards for the way that public business cntcrprises report information about operating segments and
related disclosures about products and scrvices, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the “Management approach™ as defined in Ind AS 108, Opcrating
segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) i.e the Board of Directors. The
CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocales resources on overall basis, The Company's sole operaling segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare

Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than thosc alrcady provided in the financial statcments

Further the busincss opcration of the Company arc concentrated in Tndia, and hence, the Company is considered to operate only in one geographical segment.
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of thc Mcmorandum. Accordingly, the
disclosurc in respect of the amount payable to such enterpriscs as at 31 March 2019 has been made in the financial statcments based on information received and
available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impacl of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the pravisions of the Micro, Small
and Mcdium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (The MSMED Act') is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any
supplier.

INR in millions

Particulars As at As al

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
The amounts remaining unpaid (o micro and small supplies as at end of the year
- Principal 136 073
- Interest - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act
The amount of intercst paid by the buyer in terms of Scction 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enferprises -
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specificd under the MSMED Act;
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
The amount of further intcrest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, until such datc when - -
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.31 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the
'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity' ratio.

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, including interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.
The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as of 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 was as follows:

INR in millions

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Total liabilities 475.62 552.32
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (5.73) (9.44)
Adjusted net debt 469.89 542.88
Total equity 366.30 310.38
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 1.28 1.75




KIMS Haospital Enterprises Private Liniited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

INIE in millivns

As at 31 March 2019

Carrying amount

Financial assets
— amortised cost

Financial liabilities
- amortised cost

Total carrying
Amount

Fair value level

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

Financial asscts not measuved at fair value (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 5961 5961

Cash and cash cquivalents 573 KK

Bank balunces other than above 0.10 0.10

Loans 12.59 12.59

Other financial asscts HE 854 -
Total 86.57 - 86.57 -
Financial liabilities not measured a( fair value (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings (excluding current maturitics) - 29615 296.15

Short-term borrowings - 12.52 12.52 -

Trade payables - 91.23 9113 -

Other financial liabilities - 4113 43131 -
Total - 443.13 443.13 -

INR in millions

Asat 31 March 2018

Carrying amuunt

Financial assets
— amaortised cost

Financial liabilitles
- amortised cost

Total carrying
amount

Fair value level

Financial assets and financial liabilities mecasured at fair value

Financial asscts not measured at fair value (Refer notc below)

Trade receivables 7385 73.85 -
Cash and cash cquivalents 944 - 944 -
Loans 11.43 11.43 .
Other financial assets S.08 368 -
Torl 100.40 100.40 -
Finuancial liabilitics not measured at fair value (Refer note betow)
Long-term borrowings (cxctuding current maturitics) - 338.16 338.16 -
Short-term borrowings - 3943 3943 -
Trade payables - 113.64 113.64 -
Other financial liabilitics - 45.68 43.08 -
Toral - 536.91 536.91 -

Note: The Commpany has nol disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-tenn frade

approximalion of fair values

payables becausc their carrying amounts are a 1easonable




KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limiled
Nutes (v the (fnancial statements (contnued)

2.32 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

M, Fimangial risk management
The Company’s activitics expose it 10 a varicty nf financial risks: credit risk, market sk and liquidiy risk

(i) Risk management framewark

The Cumpany’s Buard ol Directors have uverall espunsibility for the establishinent and os crsight of the Company’s risk management rames ork

The Company’s risk management polivies arc establislied to ideniify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. e scl appropriate risk limits and conlrols fo mnnilor risks and adherence Lo imits. Risk management policies and systems are
plincd and control environment in whiclt all

seviewed regularly t reflect changes in mackel cunditions and Company's activities: The Company, trough its training and management siandards and procedures, aims (o maintam a di
the therr roles and obli

how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk manayement policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk management finmework in relation to the risks faced by the
sted 1n 1ts oversight role by the internal audit. Intemal audit underfukes both regular and ad ho reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resulis of which are reported 10 the Board of

The Company's Hoard of Ditcetors over
Cowpany The Board of Directors i
Dircelors

{ii) Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the nsk that the counterparty will nol inect ils obligauon under 4 financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit ri
nstilutions and other financial insteuments. The carying amounts of financial assets represent the maxinum ceedit risk exposure

anises principally from its operaling activitics (primarily trade receivables) and from

s investing aclivilics, inclaling depasits with banks and finano
Credit risk is contolled by analysing credit limits (o whom credit has been granted afler ubtaining necessary approvals for credit The coblectiun frum Use trade receivables are monitured on s continuows basts by the teccivables team

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that cepresents its estimaie of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the recent colliction trend. The masimum exposure (o eredit risk as at reporting date
15 primarily fromm trade eceivables amounting o INR 7186 inillions us on 31 Murch 2019 (31 March 2018 : INR 74 SH millions) The movement in allowance for credit toss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

UNIE i millings

As
Allivamer for credit Inues A8 March iy
Ohreniny balange 072
Credit loss added / (reversed) 11s3
Clusing atanes 1234

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacis with banks and financial inslitutions with high credit ratings assigned by intcinational and domestic crodit rating agencies. Revenue from customers accounted
for mose than 10% of the revenuc for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 is 4 below

NI n milljmirs
[ Namie of {he contomen Fot the yrar ended For il year ended
31 March 3010 M Mareh 2048

Cutimer | 159 11353

(i) Liquldity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Company will encounter dliculy in meeling the obligations assuciated with its linancial liabilitics that are setiled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach 1o wanaging liquidity is to
ensure, as far as passible, tht il will have sufficient liquidity o mect its liabililies when they e due, under both normal and siressed condifions. without incurring unacecplable losses o risking damage 1o Lhe Company’s reputation

The table below provides defails regarding the undi: d malurities of signi financial liabilitics as of 31 March 2019:

LR ETY
Particulary ing Value Leys than I wear I =5 years Musre than 5 years
Liwigtorm bavrowings (exchusding ewieenl
mtEties] 296.15 . 29626 0.68
Shiort-term Domowings 1252 1252 . .
Trbereit i long-torm borrowings . 34,19 6191 002
Trake puyables 9122 9122 . .
Ohther linanvial Babilidies 4321 432 - .
[ Tistal 44101 18016 AsR17 L] ]
The table below provides details regarding the undiscy al maturities of signil financial liabilities as of 31 March 2018:
Partlcalary riing Value Leus thai | year B8 yeurs Mare than S vears
Lang dorm borowings (evchuding cumem
maturities) 33816 - 27064 6894
[ shpat-perm bBorrawings 3943 3943 . -
Inacrest on long-term horrowings . 3492 91,78 3n
Trude payaliles 113,64 113.64 . .
Ulier fansncial lubnliies 45 6 A5.0% J =
[Total S3u FITYS] Jsrar 21

The Company has secured loans from bank that conlain loan covertants, A futwe breach of covemant may requie the Company to repay the luan cubier than indicated in the above wble,
(iv) Market risk

{a) Interest rate risk exposure

The ey ¢ of the Comprany’s Bosemige (o isterest Gote changes ot the emd of the reporling ponil e 31 fllomet: INH in millinn

Parteniary As at Asal
M March 2619 31 March 3018

Variable rate borrowings inchudimg cument imaiirities and it tonn bortrmingy 32365 50445
Tutal burrowings 38 [
{15} Cath N semitiylty smatyais INWE i el
Particulars Impact on profit and toss Equity, nct of tsx

Fuv the year ended 31 March 2019 For the year ended 31 March 2018 For thie vear caded 31 March 2019 For the year ended 31 March 2018
Semitivity
1% increase in MCLR (324) (304) @1
1% decrisis w MCLR 34 194 2

The intercst rate sensitivity is based on the elosing balance of secured term Toans and working capial loans from banks

{v) Currency risk
‘The Company is nol exposed 1n currency risk e




KIMS Nospital Enterprises Private Limited
Noles o (he financial statements (continued)

2.33 Tocome-tax

a, Amount recugtnised in iatenicn ol prafit snd lis AWK In millions
For the year ended 31 For (he year éntled
Mlarch 2019 3 Murch 2018

hitrend tax 29.17 .
Deferred 1ax atributable (o temporary differences 34,90 L43.70)
Tax expenses for the year 68.07 (43.78)

b, Amaunt revognived in sther camprehensive income IRAE in milliung

For the year ended 31 March 2019 For the year ended 31 Maich 2014
Before tax Tax texpeme)! Net af fax Before tax Tax (expenseyf Net of 1ax
Doty tienefi
Hiesmmedsiircotent on defined beaufil plans 019 (007) 012 073 (0.23) 050

LTI
Fur the year ended 31 Far the year ended

. Reeanciliatlan of efective 1

March 2019 31 March 2014]
Profit before tay 12386 221)
Ernzceed iy ratgs 34.94% 30.90%
Tax expensc at enacted rales 4328 168§
Tan efect of amounts which are not deductible/ taxable in caleulating taxable income
Non-doductble cxponscs . 038
Iyt of change in rale of tax {2.94) (0.2
F of previnusly unr ized lax losses 2671 (4267
(ihers 1.02 (0.59)

CLA 41.78)]

d. Recognition of deferred fax assets and liabilities

1) Deferred s e 1l INR in millinns

Wlars As at As al
31 March 219 31 March 21%|
Deferred tax asset
Peovvision for duuhuful receivables 428 014
Provision for employee benefits a2 1.69
Hustnows fuss 261 66.93
Minimiem altcrnaie Lax credit entitlement 2952 035
Othcrs 124 226
Total deferred tax asset 41,77 71.38
Deferred tax Habllity
Excess of depreciation on the fixed assets under income tax, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act 5533 4536
Dihers 050 110
Tatal deferred tax liability 55.83 46.46
|Beferred wx liahility)/ asset (net) (14.06) 2491
11} Movement in teparary differences INK o il llosis
Pa lars Balance 3s at  Recognised in profit  Recognised in OCt  Balance as at 31 Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in OCI Balance as at
1 April 2007 orless dming 2017-  during 2017-18 Murch 2018 1 Aprli 2018 profit or loss durlng 2018-19 31 March 2019
1y _during 201849
Pravision [or doubtful reccivables 014 000 . 0.14 AL 414 . 42K
Provisiun for employce benefils payable 133 064 (0.23) 169 140 250 (007 402
Business loss 17.22 49.712 . 66.93 66,93 (H.31) - 2.6
Minimum alternate tax catitlement 035 - 035 115 o7 . .52
Others items - assels 1 80 046 - 226 220 0y - 124
Lxpenses of depreciation on the fixed assels under (38.K9) (6.47) - (45.36) {45,34) {947 . 155.30)
income tax, 1961 over depreciation under
Companies Act,
Others ilems - i (1.54) {0.56) * {110y L LA - A0-£u)
(18.64) 43.79 10.23 2491 p i) .50 1007 1406 |
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Notes to the financial stat ts (continued)
2.34 Assets pledged as security INR in millions
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Charge on property, plant and equipment
Leasehold improvements 147.63 15041
Medical equipment and Surgical equipment 269.09 250.38
Machinery and equipment 89.95 96.00
Offtee equipment 3.97 6.16
Electrical equipment 35.76 41.33
Computers 13.46 1539
Furniture and fixtures 46.80 52.44
Vehicles 10.52 10.93
Total property, plant and equipment pledged as sccurity 617.18 623.05
Charge on current assets
Trade receivables (gross) 71.86 74.58
Inventories 30,57 26.17
Tatal current assets pledged as security 102.43 100.75

2.35 The Company did not have any long term contracts includin
unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2019,

As per our Report on financial statements of even date attached
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g derivative contracts for which there were any material forcsceable losses. The Company does not have any
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